
 
 

Project 200-05-13 
 

DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES – SEATTLE 
Amendment 1 

August 15, 2013 
(This amendment consists of questions and answers and clarifications arising from the Pre-Proposal Conference 
conducted August 8, 2013 at the Department of Enterprise Services (DES), Olympia, WA) 
 
1. The Pre-Proposal Conference for the Department of Social And Health new leased space in the Seattle area 
was held in the Presentation Room, 1500 Jefferson Street, Olympia, WA on August 8, 2013 beginning at 10:30 
AM. 
 
 The DES staff provided an overview of the project requirements, roles and responsibilities and the 
solicitation process.  DES staff opened the meeting up for questions from the attendees. The following 
paragraphs summarize the question and answer period: 
 
 1.1. Question: Is the DSHS Addendum available? 
 

Answer: The most current version of the DSHS Addendum (3 July, 2013) will be posted to the Real 
Estate Services website as soon as possible. Interested parties should carefully review the entire 
document and give special note to the updated DSHS signage requirements. 

 
(Note: The DSHS Addendum, July 3, 2013 was posted to the DES Real Estate Services website 
under Project 200-05-13 on Friday, July 9, 2013). 

 
1.2. Question: Could you review the location requirements of the project? What drove the identification of 

this specified area? 
 

Answer: DSHS’ Children’s Administration is looking for leased space in the north Seattle area.  The 
specific area that would be most advantageous to DSHS for providing services to its clients is within a 
triangle formed by the Northgate, Greenwood and Green Lake neighborhoods. 
 
The needs of the agency to provide service to its client population drove the identification of this 
Request for Proposal and the area of consideration. 

 
 1.3. Question: What would be the most northern location? 
 

Answer: DSHS purposely did not provide a definitive northern boundary in order to maximize the 
opportunities for interested parties to make a proposal.  

 
 1.4. Question: What type of space will DES consider? 

 
Answer: At this time, DES intends to consider proposals that meet the definitions of existing space, 
space under construction, and planned space.  Interested parties should review the definitions of 
each of these categories provided in Exhibit 1 of the Request for Proposals as well as section 2.3 
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(Constraints) of the Request for Proposal.  DSHS has identified some of the key facility 
characteristics in paragraph 2.2.5 of the Request for Proposal.  Interested parties should note that 
clearly defined staff and client areas are one of the important characteristics of the space sought by 
DSHS.  
 
This office is intended to be a typical DSHS style office. 

 
1.5. Question:  Is SEPA considered site plan approval?  Previous experience is that site footprint and all 

associated documents are to be provided as part of SEPA.  When you receive approval of SEPA, 
you can submit construction drawings for a permit.  The bigger municipalities require design 
approval first, then SEPA. 

 
Answer:  No.  Please refer to Exhibit 1 (Definitions).  Depending on the permitting authority there is 
often a relationship between the SEPA and the site plan approval, but the specifics will often vary 
between permitting authorities.  At this time the State intends to consider proposals that meet the 
criteria described in Exhibit 1 (Definitions): Existing Space, Space Under Construction, or Planned 
Space.  However, the State also reserves the right to modify its requirements and / or definitions at 
any time and at its sole discretion. 

 
1.6. Question:  Who is the contact person to review to verify if proposals are meeting the requirements? 

 
Answer:  Should any interested party have a question regarding this solicitation, the interested party 
should submit his or her question in writing (e-mail is acceptable) to the Project Lead (Seth Wallace) 
for a response. DES will consult with the appropriate parties and provide a response on the Real 
Estate Services web site. 

 
1.7. Question:  What are the certifications referenced in the checklist? 

 
Answer:  Proposers should provide signed copies of the certifications that are applicable to their 
proposal.  For example, if the proposal includes a LEED certification or listing on the National 
Historic Register of Historic Places; proposers should provide the appropriate documentation 
supporting the certification. 
 

1.8. Question:  What is the purpose of the checklist? 
 

Answer: The intent of the checklist is twofold: 
 
1. – The checklist provides proposers a helpful guide to ensure they provide all the needed 
documents in support of their proposal. 
2. – The checklist provides DES staff an easy to follow mechanism to validate if proposers have 
provided all of the documents needed to be considered further in the RFP process.  
 
An example of a key document on the checklist is the Proof of Control of property and the supporting 
documents. (See the Request for Proposal, Exhibit 3, Checklist, page 33 of 33). 
 

1.9. Question:  How is LEED going to be evaluated? Will “LEED Equivalency” be considered? 
 

Answer: LEED certification is not specifically a requirement, but the State is very interested in 
energy efficiency and sustainable design.  Together with several energy efficiency and sustainability 
aspects, LEED elements or certification rating may be one of many evaluation elements that the 
State considers during its analysis of the proposals. 
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At this time, Real Estate Services does not plan to consider “LEED Equivalencies” in its analysis of 
the proposals.  However, Real Estate Services does encourage proposers to highlight any 
equivalent elements of LEED that are included in their proposal. 
 
In addition, Executive Order 12-06 requires that owners of buildings proposed to be leased to the 
state to disclose energy benchmarking data and ratings before any new lease or renewal 
negotiations may begin. 

 
1.10. Question:  Will DES use a scoring sheet?  How will the process be decided?  Is there a scoring 

mechanism? 
 

Answer: DES is in the process of refining its analysis tools.  At this point, DES anticipates using a 
scoring mechanism as one of the tools in identifying the proposal that provides the best value to the 
State.  It should be emphasized that the scoring sheet is only one factor that is considered in 
determining the best value to the State in light of the State’s needs. 

 
1.11. Question:  Could you describe the overall solicitation process?  

 
Answer: One difference in this solicitation from previous recent solicitations is that RES is combining 
the “Request for Qualifying Information” and the “Request for Proposal” into a single step.  The 
anticipated sequence for this project will be:  
 
• Issue the RFP. 
• Receive completed proposals from interested parties. 
• Conduct a review of proposals by RES to identify proposals that meet project criteria as identified 

in the RFP. 
• Conduct evaluations of the qualified proposals. 
• Schedule and conduct site walk-throughs and oral presentations. 
• Conduct evaluations of the walkthroughs and presentations. 
• Conduct a cost analysis on proposals. 
• Provide invitation to negotiate (best and final offers). 
• Conduct reference checks and a formal side by side comparison of proposals. 
• If needed, conduct a follow-up walk-through of one or more proposals. 
• Identify the proposal with the best overall value in meeting the State’s needs as the Primary 
Apparent Successful Proposer 
• Notify all the proposers of the selected outcome. 
• Design the facility and negotiate the lease. 

 
2. E-mail is the preferred method of communications for project related questions and comments.  The point 
of contact for this project is: 
 

Seth Wallace,  
Properties and Acquisition 
Specialist  

1500 Jefferson Street SE  
P.O. Box 41015  
Olympia, WA 98504-1015  

(360) 407-9291  
seth.wallace@des.wa.gov  
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